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# Question Answer Date Posted 

1  Our total project includes space for children in the 
birth to 3 year old age group.  We know that 
classrooms serving the younger ages cannot be 
funded in this RFI, but 
Can the 50% match requirement be applied to the 
whole project or just the SPP part of the project? 
 

The 50% match is for the preschool component 
and other eligible activities of the project. (See 
the RFI pages 7-8 for eligible activities that can be 
funded.) 
For example, If the preschool component and 
other eligible activities of the project are 
budgeted at $525,000; An agency may apply for 
$300,000 from the facilities fund and will be 
required to have $175,000 committed from other 
funding sources. 

4/22/16 

2 Regarding the SPP Predevelopment Services 
Program.  If I have a feasibility study – based as 
what they present as obstacles or things that 
need to be done, would that feasibility that 
they’re looking at would they also be go about 
how much it will cost to have it done or is that 
different. Do I need to request that, the figures 
of what it costs, from them separately? 

The SPP Pre Development Services Program has 
individually negotiated scopes for each project.  
That could be assessing land use, assessing 
building code, licensing, some early designs, some 
early pricing.  Depending on what is in the scope 
that information could be leveraged to support a 
proposal to this fund.  

4/27/16 

3 So my question is, is part of predevelopment, 
when they come back with “this is feasible” “not 
feasible” “this is what would need to be done.”  
Are there figures attached or do I need to 
disregard that predevelopment and do my own 
with someone else to get figures because I need 
figures? 

See the answer to question #2. 4/27/16 

4 A feasibility includes you bring in an architect if 
you’re doing a topical study.  When you talk 
about funding going towards soft costs, if you’re 
selected – which I totally get - so we could be 
doing that now.  So, the timeline is September, 
for me.  In order for that to happen I would need 
to meet with licensing, health department, and 
DPD to figure out what needs to happen and 
then associate a cost with that.  But usually 
there’s a feasibility you need to do for DPD in 
order to show its ok to do what you want to do. 

With the SPP Predevelopment services Program 
you can understand if the project is licensable and 
can move forward in a regulatory structure.  Soft 
costs are eligible to be funded in this proposal.  

4/27/16 

5 If you don’t have budget numbers by 
September, can you just do a hypothetical or do 
you need concrete numbers for your budget? 

You should enter your best estimate of the costs. 
It is highly recommended the estimates should be 
informed by a professional. 

4/27/16 

6 Would you need a memorandum of agreement 
with the architect prior too before with this 
application? 

This is not something we require in the proposal, 
but demonstrating who your project team is 
allowable and encouraged. 

4/27/16 

7 Is the 1 million is that on a calendar year, or a 
school year? 

The program is on a calendar year. 4/27/16 



8 So the $500,000 max, is that only for the 
calendar year or is that total for your RFI? 

$500,000 is maximum one proposal/one project 
can request in response to this RFI. 

4/27/16 

9 Do we just need a letter from the bank for the 
matching of the funds? Because when you own 
it, they’re going to look at your personal and 
your business. (Like an equity loan? Yes.) 

 
For matching funds, and agency will have to 
demonstrate the required funds are committed to 
the project. The source for these funds is not 
specified in the RFI.  

4/27/16 

10 The space can only be used by children 3-5, what 
about during times when SPP is not in session, 
like summer for example.  During non-SPP hours, 
could it be used for other ages? 

 
Yes.  

4/27/16 

11 Do the classrooms, 3-5, have to be current SPP 
classrooms or can they become SPP classrooms. 

The improved space has to become an SPP 
classroom. Once an approved project is complete, 
the classrooms needs to be used for SPP in the 
following school year. Commitments to the 
program range based on the funding request. 

4/27/16 

12 My question is a matching fund and about the 
“on hand.” Typically when we get an award or 
we have finished the feasibility.  Are there are 
supports within the City to help us with bridge 
financing until the distribution of any awarded 
grant. 

We do not have any bridge funding for projects.  4/27/16 

13 Once the funds are rewarded it could take a long 
time to distribute these funds, depending on 
things, if there isn’t financing in place there will 
be additional costs incurred in the project 
because of that time gap. Can the cost of bridge 
financing be included in the cost of this project? 

 
 
Expenses related to bridge financing are not an 
eligible cost. 

4/27/16 

14 Or if you have a leased space that you’re doing 
TI in – so like a lease space, you have that 
payment.  Does that encompass that too? 

 
Lease payments while not in operation are not an 
eligible cost. 

4/27/16 

15 Is there a timeline for distribution of funds after 
award? Do you know what that timeline looks 
like? 

Every project is going to be negotiated 
individually. If you’re awarded funds, during that 
negotiation the contract will define the timing of 
the payment points.  

4/27/16 

16 If you’re funding through a bank, they want to 
double check that the work’s being done (maybe 
quarterly) prior to going to the next phase. So, is 
the City going to have its own regulatory process 
that we have to submit that information to, in 
addition to the bank?  

Project milestones and payment points, if your 
proposal if funded, will be outlined in the contract. 

4/27/16 

17 The ADA compliance what does that mean in your 
terms?  I have different terms. I want to know 
exactly what that looks like to be ADA compliant 
for the City for the RFI.   

  
Please refer to Seattle Building Codes for ADA 
compliance requirements. 

4/27/16 



18 And the timeline for predevelopment, we know it’s 
4-6 weeks so response back. So is there a cutout 
time. 

The SPP Pre Development Services Program 
timeline is defined by each individual project. We 
aim to have all projects completed within three 
months. 

4/27/16 

19 Can soft costs include interior design?  
Yes, but that cost should be listed as other cost in 
the budget template. 

4/27/16 

20 Is intent to lease a strong enough proof of site 
control? Or do you have to have a fully negotiated 
lease?  

 
Since terms of the lease are not listed in an Intent 
agreement the City will need to review an 
executed lease prior to moving forward with the 
funding proposal. 

4/27/16 

21 When you say this excludes equipment, does that 
also exclude kitchen equipment being pulled out of 
the kitchen space? Or are you meaning excluding 
classroom equipment? 

 
This exclusion is for equipment related to the 
classroom or easily removable from the facility, 
other equipment for the permanent use of the 
facility such as HVAC, kitchen appliances or 
playground equipment are eligible to be funded. 
Books, chairs or kitchen utensils are example of 
ineligible equipment. 

4/27/16 

22 If you own the building, but you lease to the 
business. Do you need a copy of that lease? Since 
it’s all the same person. I own the building and I’m 
leasing to the Center. 

If you operate out of a facility you own then you 
need to demonstrate that in the application. 

4/27/16 

23 What do you know about funding next year?  
Funds that will be available through this. 

We will post information regarding funding for 
next year as soon as we know if, and at what 
amount, is available. 

4/27/16 

24 I have another question about the matching funds 
and I understand if we apply for over $250,000 we 
have to have the matching funds secured. Are 
those matching funds applicable to the SPP 
classrooms, or can those matching funds be 
utilized for the other part of the tenant 
improvement. 

The matching funds need to be directed towards 
eligible activities in this RFI.  That would exclude 
improvements to infant and toddler classrooms. 

4/27/16 

25 If you’re getting 2 preschool classrooms and 2 
toddler.  For the preschool classrooms you still 
need a kitchen, you’d still need the staff rooms, 
still need the laundry. So an allocated percentage 
towards the preschool.   
  

 
Associated space to the Preschool classrooms are 
eligible activities for funding. Your proposal should 
remove costs of improving the infant and toddler 
rooms from the budget submitted for funding. 

4/27/16 



26 So if you have a project that has infant toddler 
classrooms and preschool classrooms.  The 
preschool classrooms are eligible and the toddler 
classrooms are not. But the other spaces you need 
money for, which supports those classrooms, 
outdoor space, kitchens, bathrooms, stuff like that, 
what portion- what percentage?  Your total cost is 
your total cost since you’re doing it for the whole 
center. 

The budget template in the application allows you 
to separate your funding sources for the whole 
project based on non-eligible activities, if 
necessary. 

4/27/16 

27 Is there going to be a budget Q&A. Like if you’re 
working on your budget and you have questions? 

There is not a budget Q and A scheduled at this 
time. 

4/27/16 

28 And any question have to be submitted before July 
27th? 

Correct, that is last day to submit a question for 
this RFI. 

4/27/16 

29 We have a number of SPP and Pathway classrooms 
in our organization. I understand we can only apply 
up to a maximum of $500,000 per project.  In this 
application can we apply to more than one 
project? 

 
A single organization is limited to one project per 
site they currently have in SPP. Therefore if an 
agency has 6 locations, they could apply for up to 
6 proposals this year. 

4/27/16 

30 You said the way to get Technical Assistance is to 
email you.  Would you just answer the questions 
or would you actually give 1x1 Technical 
Assistance? 

DEEL is not providing one on one technical 
assistance, but will answer publicly any RFI related 
questions.   

4/27/16 

31 Sometimes tenant improvement estimates are 
very different than actuals.  If we submit a project 
budget with very particular precise tenant 
improvement costs from a reputable construction 
company and we need to make the budget smaller 
and sometimes that comes in the way of moving 
certain things, not associated with the SPP 
classrooms.  It’s been my experience in the past 
with City funding that it doesn’t matter as long as 
you perform, that you do what you say you’re 
going to do and the difference between budget 
and actuals as long as you perform the contract is 
ok. Is that your thinking about this particular 
project? 

We will outline the impact of any budget change, if 
your project is funded, when we negotiate a 
contract. During that negotiation we’ll have some 
considerations around changes to the scope or 
budget. 

4/27/16 

32 And if once an award has happened and the 
actuals come higher, so it’s the same question as if 
they came in lower, what would happen in that 
case? 

See the answer to question 31. 4/27/16 

33 So should we have a contingency in the budget? We require a minimum of 15% for a contingency in 
any proposal budget. 

4/27/16 

34 How will the large request affect the timing of the 
distribution of the funds? 

See the answer to question 15. 4/27/16 

35 Slower reward or distribution? See the answer to question 15. 4/27/16 



36 When will the RFI open again for next year? We will announce any dates for next year as soon 
as we know here at DEEL. 

4/27/16 

37 Could it be April possibly for an RFI opening next 
year? 

See answer to question 36. 4/27/16 

38 You said in the application we would need to prove 
land use codes.  Looking at them and 
understanding them are really two different 
things, particularly the intricacies of the levels of 
land use codes. What is the expectation of 
educators to understand those? 

Our expectation is that if you are going into a new 
space that may be changing the use or trigger 
other land or building related code issues that you 
have technical support in interpreting those codes. 
The Predevelopment Services Program can 
support your project with this assistance.  
http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments
/OFE/AboutTheLevy/EarlyLearning/2016-2-
23_PreDevCommuncation.pdf  

4/27/16 

39 In terms of competition of project, is there a time 
funds must be utilized by? 

All projects receiving less than $250,000 are 
required to be complete within one year of a 
contract agreement. Request of more than 
$250,000 needs to be complete within 18 months.  

4/27/16 

40 The PowerPoint is online already right? The session PowerPoint will be posted on Monday 
morning. 

4/27/16 

41 Damage to a current SPP classroom incurred from 
a disaster of sorts considered an eligible activity 
through this funding? Basically we had sprinklers 
go off in a Pathway classroom. 

If it is an eligible activity then it could be funded, 
although you would have to document that other 
resources were not available such as insurance or 
agreements with a landlord. 

4/27/16 

42 Can cost associated with moving be included in the 
soft costs of the project? 

Moving costs are not an eligible soft, or associated 
cost, for the funds.  

5/6/16 

43 The first round resulted in three awards or three 
projects being funded and can DEEL share the 
scope of work and budgets of those projects?   

The City intends to fund three projects from the 
first round, one large and two on the smaller side. 
Of the $1 million, we have approximately 
$350,000 still available for 2016 second round 
projects.  

7/18/16 

44 In 2016 I know you’re giving out $1,000,000.  Will 
that be the same in 2017? 

We have not determined the available funding for 
2017. 

7/18/16 

45 The project that we have in mind has mixed 
purposes - it might benefit more than people than 
children in preschool. Would that even be eligible 
and second of all, if it was eligible, would you only 
just fund a portion of it?  Like only cover the 
portion that is supporting preschool? 

We would need further information but, per the 
RFI, our funding can only be used for preschool 
classrooms and supporting spaces for the 
preschool program. 

7/18/16 

http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OFE/AboutTheLevy/EarlyLearning/2016-2-23_PreDevCommuncation.pdf
http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OFE/AboutTheLevy/EarlyLearning/2016-2-23_PreDevCommuncation.pdf
http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/OFE/AboutTheLevy/EarlyLearning/2016-2-23_PreDevCommuncation.pdf


46 I’m curious what the City’s interest is? The City interest is described in the RFI as a legal 
mechanism the City will take for projects funded 
above $250,000.  This means the City will take 
some level of interest, similar to what a bank 
would do, in the property to protect itself in the 
event of the property not being used for the 
intended purpose of the grant investment or not 
being completed (or other events that violate our 
contract agreement). 

7/18/16 
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